ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 20, 2007
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representative Mark Neuman
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO. 97
“"An Act nmking appropriations for state aid to public schools
centralized correspondence study, and transportation of pupils;
and providing for an effective date.”
ADOPTED LETTER OF | NTENT FOR CSHB 97( HES)
PRESENTATI ON: NO CHI LD LEFT BEH ND UPDATE
- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 29
"An Act relating to infants who are safely surrendered by a
parent shortly after birth.”
- MOVED CSHB 29(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 97

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: K-12 EDU; PERS/ TRS LI ABILITY
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 22/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 07 (H) HES, FIN
02/ 13/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 20, 2007



02/ 13/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 07 (H) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 15/ 07 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 15/ 07 (H) Moved CSHB 97(HES) Qut of Committee
02/ 15/ 07 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 20/ 07 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 29

SHORT TI TLE: SAFE HAVEN FOR | NFANTS

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX, GCRUENBERG, LYNN, HARRIS,
NEUMAN, W LSON, DAHLSTROM GARDNER, OLSON, DOLL, KERTTULA

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H HES, JUD

02/ 08/ 07 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 08/ 07 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

02/ 20/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

LES MORSE, Director

Assessnent and Accountability D vision

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the federal No
Child Left Behind Act.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 29.

CHRI STINE R MARASI GAN, Staff

to Representative Gabrielle Ledoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 29.

TAMMY SANDOVAL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Ofice of Children's Services (OCS)

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on state abandonnment and
adoption issues.

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyist, Executive Director

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 20, 2007



Al aska Conference of Catholic Bishops
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 29.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:02:34 PM
Representatives WIson, Gardner, Roses, and Seaton were present
at the call to order. Representati ves Neuman, Cissna, and
Faircl ough arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 97- APPROP: K-12 EDU, PERS/TRS LI ABILITY

3:03:15 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
adoption of a letter of intent for CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 97( HES)

"An Act making appropriations for state aid to public schools,
centralized correspondence study, and transportation of pupils;
and providing for an effective date.”

3:03:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to enclose a letter of intent for
CSHB 97(HES). There being no objection, it was so ordered.

3:04:11 PM

PRESENTATI ON:  NO CHI LD LEFT BEH ND

3:04: 20 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
a presentation on the federal No Child Left Behind (NCLB) act.

LES MORSE, Director, Assessnent and Accountability Division,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED), provided
the comittee a PowerPoint presentation titled "School &
District Accountability Under No Child Left Behind." He
remnded the commttee that the federal law requires state
schools to nmake adequate yearly progress (AYP) towards neeting
acadeni ¢ goal s. The adequate yearly progress standards require
schools to have 95 percent student participation in standardi zed
testing. These tests neasure another factor in evaluating AYP
by determining how nmany students neet the targeted annual
measur abl e objective or target ("AMJ') in math and |[|anguage

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2007



arts. The final evaluation is the school's graduation or
attendance rate. Under NCLB, the percentage of students who
must neet certain targets increases each year until it reaches
100 percent for school years 2013-14. M. Morse explained that
the | aw does not require 100 percent test participation, but the
95 percent of students who take the test nust neet certain
acadeni c targets.

3:10: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to the chart on page 2 sub-
titled "Annual Measurable Cbjective or Target," and asked about
initial plateaus in the required AMs which did not change much
from 2001- 2005. However, after 2005 the percentage of students
who nust neet the AMOs increases by about 6 percent annually.
She observed that often changes in the beginning of a program
are easier to obtain than changes |ater, and whether this theory
applies to make neeting the AMO requirenents nore difficult in
| ater years.

MR. MORSE replied that the targeted achi evenent |evels may have
been set up to allow those inplenenting NCLB a few years to
determine the appropriate teaching nethods and accommobdations
for children with special needs. He said he believes that the
theory was once those initial determ nations were nade, it would
be possible to use the lessons learned to increase success in
| ater years. However, he agreed it can be easier to see changes
early in a new program but it can be nore difficult to effect
change later in a program M. Mrse stated that when NCLB was
enacted states struggled to find ways to inplement it, and the
chart reflects one of those nethods.

MR. MORSE expl ai ned that each school and district nmust neet AYP.
Furthernmore, AYP standards nust be nmet by six racial/ethic

groups as well as by students who are economically
di sadvant aged, those who have l|limted proficiency in English,
and by those with special needs. Al together, schools nust

neet different nmeasured standards in 31 various categories, he
sai d.

MR. MORSE went on to explain that graduation rates are neasured
school w de only. For high school, the inquiry is how many of
the students who enter in ninth grade graduate four years |ater.
Students who go to another school are not included in the

graduation rate calculation. Students who drop out are
incorporated into the graduation rate calculation, but do not
account for all aspects of the graduation rate. For exanpl e,

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -4- February 20, 2007



Al aska has a 60 percent four-year graduation rate, but that does

not mean 40 percent of students drop out. Sonme students
continue on beyond 4 years due to their individual education
program or other reasons, he expl ai ned. | f a student graduates
in his or her fifth year, the school wll receive credit for

t hat student's graduati on.
3:18: 28 PM

MR. MORSE responded to a question by stating that the graduation
rate is appearing to average out at about 60 percent. The drop
out rate for students from 7th to 12 grade is calculated to be
around 4 to 6 percent. The students who drop out are part of
the 40 percent that does not graduate, but only a snal

percentage he noted. The graduation rate that schools nust neet
is 55.58 percent of students, which he characterized as a

reasonabl e rate. Schools that do not have a graduation rate,
such as nmiddle schools, nust neet a target attendance rate of 85
per cent . He said that the average attendance rate in Alaska is
94 percent.
3:.21:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROCSES said that educators refer to the categories
as the 31 ways to fail because the only way not to fail is to
neet the criteria in all 31 categories.

3:23: 22 PM

MR MORSE referred the commttee to the chart on page 3
subtitled "Exanple of AYP Wrksheet,” which illustrates how a
school would anal yze test results to nonitor their progress. On
the sanple chart, all categories for AM3Os are net except in the
sub-group of students wth disabilities in the category of
| anguage arts. M. Mrse stated that this sanple scenario
hi ghlights what he characterized as a flaw in the NCLB |aw
This sanple school mssed the AMO in only one area, but it is
treated the same as a school that mssed AMO in every area.
School s face consequences if they mss targeted goals, but he
opined that the consequences should be tailored to fit the
problem He said EED would |ike to see the NCLB reauthorization
bill amend the law to provide that consequences for failure to
neet AMOs be targeted nore closely to the probl em area.

3:24: 26 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE RCSES reiterated that there are 31 ways to fai
under the law, but only one way for a school to pass.

3:25: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN said that the paradox seenms to be that
snmal | er schools cannot afford to hire better teachers, while
| arger schools are trying to neet the 31 indicators for their
di verse school popul ation. He asked whether there is a school
size that seens nore able to neet AYP standards.

MR. MORSE replied that there does not seem to be an ideal size
school under NCLB, but he opined that it is harder for |arger

schools to neet the 31 indicators. He explained that sub-
group's test results will be considered only if they neet a
m ni mum group size of 25. In a small school there may only be

two special needs students, and that would not neet the 25 group
m ni mum size, so the school would not have to neet targeted
objectives for the special needs category. Larger school s
typically have at least 25 students in each of the categories,
and therefore nust neet the targets in every category, he
expl ai ned.

3:27:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if anything is being done to
address sone of the concerns di scussed today.

MR MORSE said it appears that the issue of differentiated
consequences is being scrutinized by a nunmber of groups which
are advising the United State Congress on issues related to
NCLB

3:29: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether there has been any further
di scussi on on standardi zi ng the sizes for the sub-groups.

MR. MORSE stated the aforementioned issue is part of the
di al ogue anong interested groups and has been raised at a
national neeting. He said there has been sonme talk of
standardi zing the sub-group sizes anobng the states. He
expl ai ned that the sub-group size is arrived at after discussion
and public feedback by the various stakeholders. The group size
must go through a state regulatory process, and nust ultimtely
be agreed upon by the federal United States Departnent of
Educati on, he noted.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 20, 2007



3:32:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN observed that the sub-group size could be
a very valuable tool for a state to utilize in determ ning how
best to neet their AYP requirenents.

MR. MORSE said he believes the aforenentioned point is why the
federal government is involved in the approval of a state's sub-
group si ze. The federal governnment analyzes how many schools
are excluded based on the sub-group size. He reiterated that
all schools are eval uated regardl ess of size.

3:34: 30 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired how smaller schools account for their
speci al needs students since the students wll not be
categorized separately if there are fewer than 25. Therefore

the school may not have incentive to work with these students,
she opi ned.

MR. MORSE expl ai ned that when a snaller school is evaluated as a
whol e, the special needs students will be identified and be part
of the eval uati on. He noted that even two students in a snal

school could have an affect on the test results, so the school
will not want to ignore them He explained that privacy in
small schools is a concern, so if the school only had two
speci al needs students, the report may summari ze the results and
report that 60 percent of students were proficient and 40
percent were not instead of the actual nunmbers as that could
result in the identification of the actual nunbers of students

that failed to nmeet the AYP standards. He went on to explain
that the public report card would state whether five children
took the test. For the AYP results, there is a little higher

scrutiny on the nunbers because the school is being held liable
to nmeet AYP standards and the EED wants to be absolutely sure
before holding a school to any consequences for failure to neet
sone criteria.

3:38:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked about what the affect is on reporting
test results if the sub-group size is bel ow 25 students.

MR. MORSE replied that for the AYP reports, it is reported that

t he subgroup nunber was too small to be reported. However, on
the "report card" posted on EED s website, the sub-groups are

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 20, 2007



reported as long as at least five students in the sub-group took
the test.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed the opinion that the different
group sizes anobng states mmke conparisons of Al aska to other
states inaccurate. For exanple, he said that the sub-group size
in California is 50 students, and as a result, that state may
have the ability to structure its testing groups to achieve nore
favorable test results. I ndeed, there is evidence that |arge
nunbers of students are not accounted for in sone systens, he
said, reading froma comm ssion report.

3:41: 06 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whether it is possible for a small school to
nmeet AYP standards by not reporting test results for sone
students because the sub-groups are |l ess than 25 students.

MR. MORSE explained that sone schools are so small that it is
difficult to make a judgnment about progress. For exanple, if a

district only has three small schools, the results of the
schools are exam ned individually and as a group to get a better
pi cture of progress. He noted that individual schools may neet

AYP, but when results are conbined within a district, they may
not neet AYP. He went on to say that the |law was designed to
allow a state to conpare its progress to its own standards, not
to that of other states.

3:43:16 PM

MR. MORSE expl ai ned that the consequences inposed for failure to
nmeet AYP standards are contained in state regulations, but each
district is responsible for ensuring its schools inplement any
consequences. For individual schools, there are five |evels of
consequences, beginning with level 1 the first year a school
does not neet AYP. Once a school fails to neet AYP for at | east
two years, it nust neet AYP standards for two consecutive years
to be renoved from the inposition of consequences. At the
district level, there are four |evels of consequences and the
state is responsible for ensuring that a district inplenments the
appropriate consequence. In response to a question of when
responsibility for a school would shift to the state, M. Mrse
responded that would only happen if a district initiated an
action to turn a school over to the state. He said that has not
happened i n Al aska.

3:45:50 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- February 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES sought further clarification on the
consequences that occur when a school or district fails to neet
AYP st andar ds.

MR. MORSE stated that for a school to be turned over to the
state, it would have to have been at level five, neaning it had
not met AYP for five years in a row. The district does not have
to turn a school over to the state at that point. It may choose
ot her options such as re-structuring or outside nmanagenent, he
expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked how many Al aska school s have not net
AYP for the past four vyears, noting that there nmay be a
possibility that the state will be asked to assune
responsibility for any school that has not nmet AYP at the end of
five years of testing.

MR. MORSE indicated he would cover that point later in his
present ati on. The regulations allow the state to take over a
non-perform ng school, but there are other options besides a
state takeover.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed concerns that in other federa
prograns options are being limted, noting that there is a
possibility that in the reauthorization of NCLB the federal
government may limt the state's options for schools which fai
to neet AYP.

MR. MORSE said that the state is noving forward on the current
law and is considering the effect of a requirenent that the
state take greater authority within a district. He noted that
many options are being considered by various groups, and said
the EED is voicing its opinion about reasonable options.

3:49:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his opinion that state takeover
of schools is not a desired result and he would support EED
efforts to bring forth other options.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked what steps have been taken to help
i nprove the schools that are at levels 4 and 5.

MR. MORSE responded that these schools are the responsibility of

their district, not the state. However, the non-performng
schools nmust file a school inprovenent plan with the state. The

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- February 20, 2007



state has conf erences Wi th t he school regar di ng t he

i npl enentation and evaluation of its plan. Furthernore, the
school nust react and re-design its plan as a result of its
eval uati on. However, the state has nore involvenent wth

district plans as required by |aw He said that this year the
state is very involved with designing three district inprovenent
plans to assure coherence between the plans and the schools.
The state has also provided sone additional training for these
districts.

3:51:39 PM

MR. MORSE referred to the chart titled "AYP School Results,” on
page 5 that shows which percentage of Al aska's approxi mately 500
school s neet AYP standards. He noted that the percentage of
schools neeting AYP inproved from 2003 to 2006. He said that
approximately 12 percent of that increase was due in to changes
in sub-group size. He estimated that from 2003-2004 there was
an approximately 4 percent gain due to factors besides "changing
the rules.” In 2004 to 2006 the percent of increase has been
between 1 and 3 percent; those gains were not due to rule
changes, he said.

3:53:16 PM

MR. MORSE drew the comrittee's attention to charts on pages 5-7
that set forth AYP school results and explained that the results
are reported school w de and by sub-group. This categori zation
allows better interpretation of inprovenent wthin sub-groups,

he i ndi cat ed. For exanple, a school's total result my not
change that nuch, but a sub-category could show significant
i mprovenent . He further explained that the results show that

schools are mssing their targets in fewer categories, and
referred to the charts on page 6. He noted that in 2004 many
schools m ssed achieving AYP in over nine categories, however,
by 2006 far fewer schools were mssing AYP in multiple
categori es He explained that AYP as currently structured,
wi thout differentiated consequences, does not recognize this
type of inprovenent.

3:56:49 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA st ated her understanding that NCLB sets up
certain requirements and tests, and inquired whether the tests

designed to establish AYP actually neasure anything that is
useful for outcones to societal qualities.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- February 20, 2007



MR. MORSE replied that the tests have been designed in the |ast
four years wth the efforts of approximately 700 in-state
teachers. He rem nded the conmmittee that the tests are based on
standards within the areas of reading, witing, and mathenatics.
A test conmpany was hired to design the questions to test the
agreed upon standards. Those questions are reviewed by state
t eachers. He opined that it does represent a good standard for
eval uating the areas of reading, witing, and nmathematics.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA opined the tests may neasure test taking
ability, so it may not neasure as nuch as IS necessary. If a
person is not good at test taking it doesn't neasure their
ability.

4:00: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN stated his understanding that the Al aska
tests are outcone based.

MR. MORSE explained that there are two types of tests: norm
reference tests, in which test takers are conpared to each
other, and criterion tests, in which standards are tested. He
enphasized that the Alaska tests incorporate both nmultiple
choice and other nore open-ended type of questions to address
different test taking approaches.

MR. MORSE explained that district wide, 11 of the state's
districts are at level 4, 10 are at level 3, 8 are at level 2
and 3 are at level 1 for failure to neet AYP standards. The EED
is working closely with sonme of those districts.

4:03:35 PM

MR. MORSE explained that the EED would like to be able to
include growh in how it nmeasures school AYP progress. If a
school inproves significantly but still does not neet the target
AYP, they reach what NCLB deens "safe harbor.” He said that a
problem with the inplenentation of safe harbor provisions is
that it conpares a group of students in 3rd through 5th grade
from the current year to the group of 3rd through 5th graders
from the previous year. He opined that does not work well
because it conpares different students, instead of individual
student's progress. He said that Al aska has applied to be part
of a federal pilot programto use individual student gromh as a
measure of AYP.

4:07:47 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2007



CHAIR WLSON set forth her understanding that because NCLB is a
federal law, the EED is limted in the changes it can nmake. She
stated her support for efforts to track children's progress
i ndi vidual ly.

4:08:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked about whether there are suppl enenta
service providers available to help schools that need to inprove
t heir AYP. He expressed concern over use of "telephone tutors”
in rural areas because those services my be expensive, yet of
guesti onabl e use.

MR MORSE replied that there has been an increase in the
avai lability of supplenental service providers, but noted it is
a challenge to find providers in the renote areas of the state.
He went on to say that the EED is evaluating the effectiveness
of suppl enmental service providers.

MR MORSE responded to a question about whether the NCLB
requires any parental involvenent by explaining although he
could not address that conpletely, he did note that there are
requi renents for parental involvenent at the |ocal |evel when an
i nprovenent plan is designed. He went on to say that EED neets
wi th parent groups, such as the Parent Teacher Associ ation.

4:12:40 PM

MR. MORSE explained in response to a question, that there is a
clear systemin place to evaluate the schools, but currently no
prograns to evaluate individual teachers. He said that teacher
evaluation is currently being discussed, and noted that this
i ssue nust be carefully considered because nmany factors besides
t eacher conpetency affect academ c performance. For exanple, in
a small class, under performance by one or two students due to
illness can dramatically affect test results.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he was aware of a large research
study that concluded that the nunber one indicator of student
performance is the quality of the classroom teacher. If it is
that inportant, the issue of teacher conpetence should not be
i gnored, he indicated.

4:16:55 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2007



HB 29- SAFE HAVEN FOR | NFANTS

4:17: 38 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO, 29, "An Act relating to infants who are safely
surrendered by a parent shortly after birth."

REPRESENTATI VE  GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Alaska State Legislature
speaking as a prime sponsor, explained that she believes this
"safe haven" bill has the potential to save an infant's life
It allows a parent to safely surrender an infant to a peace
of ficer, physician, hospital enployee, firefighter, or conmunity
health aide within 21 days of the child' s birth without fear of
crimnal prosecution. Currently 47 states have sonme type of
safe haven | aw She said that the intent of the bill is to
deter young unmarried wonmen who conceal their pregnancies and
give birth in private from di sposi ng of their newborn's bodies.

4:19: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 29, Version 25-LS0O192\M M schel
2/ 20/ 07. There being no objection, Version M was before the
conmittee.

4:20: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked why the time period of 21 days
was chosen

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX replied that any nunber could have been
chosen however, she said she believes the 21-day period was
chosen by consensus by l|ast year's House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

4:20:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER agreed this was an inportant |ife saving
bill. However, she expressed concern as to how quickly a child
can be released for adoption and whether the issue of paternity
i s consi der ed.

CHRI STINE R MARASI GAN, Staff to Representative Gabrielle
Ledoux, Al aska State Legislature, explained that sone states use
a registry system to find fathers of abandoned infants. She
noted that the Alaska legislation allows either a father or

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- February 20, 2007



not her to surrender an infant. She went on to say that there
are already abandonnent statutes in place; this |egislation
elimnates crimnal prosecution if the infant Is safely
surrendered to certain professionals as listed in the bill.
| ssues of adoption would be covered by other statutory
provi si ons.

4:23:22 PM

CHAI R WLSON asked what woul d happen under current laws if a two
week ol d infant was brought to a church, for exanple, and left.

4:23:52 PM

TAMMY  SANDOVAL, Deputy Commi ssioner, Ofice of Children's
Services (OCS), Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
replied that whonmever the child was surrendered to would contact
the nearest OCS and that agency would nake sure the child was
safely placed in a foster hone. The OCS would then try to
| ocate the absent parent. This is the same process used for
situations when a child is abandoned.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN said that it is inmportant to |ocate the

father or the nother, and that is why this bill refers to the
parent .
4:25:06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how long it nay take to locate a
parent in cases where a child is abandoned.

M5. SANDOVAL replied that it really depends on the situation and
whet her the parent is forthcomng wth information when they

surrender the child. It can take quite a bit longer if OCS has
no know edge of the parent. Sonetines the community can help to
identify relatives who nmay assume custody of the child. If no

one cones forward, OCS nust go through the regular |[egal
procedures required to be followed before a child is adopt ed.

4:27:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA expressed her synpathy to Representative
Gardner's concerns and rem nded the comrittee that the systemis
not set up to expedite adoption proceedings for a child whose
custody has been surrendered. She asked whether there was
information on how often parents change their mnds after
surrendering custody of a child.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2007



M5. SANDOVAL stated that she was not aware of what percentage of
parents in the aforenentioned situation changed their mnds, but
could review that issue. She rem nded the conmttee that AS
47.10. 013, the abandonment statute, covers situations where a
parent or guardian, wthout justifiable cause, has left a child
wi t hout provisions for the «child s support and without
meani ngful communication with the child for a period of 3
nmont hs. In general, this seens to indicate a three-nonth
mnimum tinme period before any adoption proceedings can start,
she indicated. She distinguished the abandonnent situation from
the situation where OCS is trying to work with parents and

children in what can be a lengthy rehabilitative process. She
offered that in a situation where a parent truly abandons an
infant, the infant would I|ikely nove through the adoption

process nore quickly than an ol der child.
4:31:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked about the tinme period for infant
adopti on proceedi ngs.

M5. SANDOVAL said that her agency is not aware of any time in
the recent past when an infant has been surrendered. She said
that it is a different situation where OCS is involved wth a
parent in a Child in Need of Aid proceeding.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA queried whether younger children are
adopted faster, regardless of how they come to be in the state
system

M5. SANDOVAL explained that the situation of abandonnent may
result in a speedier adoption because OCS would not be involved
in a case plan with a parent. She said that she surm ses that
adoption proceedings for a surrendered infant would be speedier
because there is no parent to work with in a rehabilitative
process.

4:34: 06 PM

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyist, Executive Director, Al aska Conference of
Catholic Bishops, remnded the commttee that the position of

the Catholic Church is to support life from the nonent of
conception until natural death, and this bill may save a life.
The church also supports the integration of the bill's

provisions with the current OCS system and is satisfied with the
21-day limt in the bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- February 20, 2007



4:36:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 29, Version 25-
LS0192\M M shcel, 2/20/07, out of commttee wth individual
recomendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 29(HES) was reported from House Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Commttee.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adj ourned at 4:37:20 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- February 20, 2007



